ICSO Transcription Interview- Case No. 03-122223 Date of Interview: August 4, 2004 

1 •••••••******Beginning of Tape. Side A ••••u••••••• 
'":":~ 

/.JJI?-
(Y 7 s1

( MP: I'm gonna assume that's recording now. Urn, my name is Detective Mark A.- Plumberg with the 

4 Island County Sheriffs Office. The date is August the forth, two thousand four. It's seventeen oh nine 

5 or five oh nine p.m. We're at the Punta Gorda Police Station. Also present in the room is Commander 

· 6 Mike Beech of the Island County Sheriffs Office and James Huden. Mister Huden, would you mind for 

7 the tape recording just stating your full name and date ofbirth? 

8 JH: James Edward Huden. August twenty-sixth, nineteen fifty-~,ee. 

9 MP: OK. Urn, and what's your horne address now? 

10 JH: Two oh six Yucca, Y-U-C-C-A Street, Punta Gorda, Florida three three nine five five. 

11 MP: OK. And, uh, we were already talking with you at your house about this. I, I read your 

12 constitutional rights to you at the house and you agreed to come .down to the police station and speak 

13 with us. 

14 JH: Yes. 

15 MP: Uh, I'm gonna go ahead and just, because we're doing a tape recording, you understand this is 

16 being taped? 
\ 

_.117 JH: Yes. 

18 · MP: OK. I'm gonna go ahead and just advise you of your rights again. You have the right to remain 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

. 31 

JJ 

silent. Anything you say can and will be used against you in a court of law. You have the right at this 

time to talk to a lawyer and to have him present with you while you are being questioned. If you cannot · 

afford to hire a lawyer, one will be appointed to represent you before questioning if you wish. You can 

decide at any time to exercise these rights and not answer any questions or make any statements.- Do 

you understand each ofthese·rights I've explained to you? 

JH: Yes. 

MP: OK. With these rights in mind will you talk to us now? 

JH: Yes. 

MP: Give us a taped statement? OK. 

JH: Absolutely. 

MP: OK. Urn, we'd discussed some issues at the house. Uh, and I, while we're, while we're on tape, I 

just want to go back over some issues that seemed kind of critical to me while we were talking. Urn, 

first off, would you tell us again how you and Peggy got to Washington from Las-Vegas? ~ 
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-ex·· 
~·. \) 

. 2 

MB: Kay, can I interrupt for one second? 

MP: Sure, yeah 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

MB: Jim, I don't know if you understand. In, in Florida, and s-, I'm sure you can see the sign on the 

room, that there's, this is being video taped as well. 

JH: Oh, that's fine. 

MB: In Washington, you know, same with, with, uh, the audio taping, they get your, your consent to do 
'i' . 

that. So just for the tape, now for the video portion, you understand we're being video taped and.audio 

8 taped while we have this conversation. / 

9 JH: Yes. 

10 MB: OK. That's all I need to know. 

11 MP: Urn, yeah, the part about you and, and Peggy.and how you got, can you tell us where you started 

12 and how you got here and how Peggy got here. Just run back over that with me. 

13 JH: Urn, I left Florida in May or June of, uh, late May or early June of two thousand three. I drove to 

14 Las Vegas, uh, met Peggy, a-, or no, actually, Uh, she flew down to Dallas and I picked her up at the 

15 Dallas Airport Uh, drove to Vegas, um, stayed there while sh-, he was house hunting a few days. Flew 

· '')16 up to Whidbey, or Seattle and stayed on Whidbey Island from, I guess that would still.be in June, uh, 

· · .... 17 two oh three to, or two thousand three. Um, left the island late July two thousand three with a truck load 

18 of furniture and, uh, moved into a, uh, home in Henderson, Nevada. Uh, I believe that was the first of 

19 August. Uh, I stayed there with her, uh, until early two thousand four .and came back here to Florida and 

20 I'm still here. 

21 MP: OK. Urn, specifically when we talked aboutChristmastime, do you remember I asked you about 

22 Christmastime of last year? 

23 JH: Yes. 

24 MP: Can you tell us about the travel with you and Peggy? 

25 JH: Abs-, Absolutely. Urn, I still can't clear up the dates specifically for you, but I believe, uh, I left 

26 Las Vegas on 11 Monday or a Tuesday, um, the week before Christmas. Drove to Seattle and stayed with 

27 a friend there overnight, that would be Wednesday night. And this is all based on the fact, I think that, 

28 uh, Peggy and the girls landed, uh, on Thursday. They may have landed on Wednesday and I might be 

~9 off a day, but, uh, next day picked Peggy and the girls up at the airport, uh, in the evening. Peggy and I 

30 stayed at a hotel in, uh, Lynnwood I believe. A hundred ninety-six off ofl-5. The first night, m-, uh, 

JY I went up to Wbidbey Island and stayed a~ ub, a friends house, ub, from that, ub, the next day, uh, Frida~ 
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until Monday or Tuesday of the, uh, following week. Urn, after Peggy got off work, either that Monday 

or Tuesday, we drove into, uh, uh, Seattle and stayed at an airport hotel, a nice airport hotel a couple of 

blocks behind the, the Thirteen Coins, right down by the airport, andleft, uh, left Seattle the· day after 

Christmas. 

?: (inaudible) 

MB: For the tape, Detective Plumberg has Stepped out for a moment to answer the phone. According to 
. ~ 

my watch it's seventeen sixteen hours. Where were we Jim now? you stayed, what was that last 

sentence? Redo it for me if you would. .t 

JH: Uh, s-, stayed in the motel, uh, that I don't recall the name of, uh, until the day after Christmas, and. 

MB: Anddid? 

JH: Go ahead. 

·MB: You guys flew out from there? Oh, you, oh. 

JH: No, I had the car. Peggy flew up and rode back with me. 

MB: OK. Seventeen seventeen and Detective Plumberg's back in the room. 

MP:. I'm sorry Mister Ruden, I had to take that call. 

JH: Not a problem . 

MB: Urn, uh, we were just at the point where he stayed at the hotel by the Thirteen CoinS and left the 

day after Christmas to drive back to Vegas. 

MP: Kay. Uh, now, I just want to make sure that I cover this, cause we covered it at the house, I want 

to make sure I have it right. 

JH: Yes. 

MP: You drove up here from Vegas. 

JH: Correct. 

MP: In which car? 

JH: Uh, the Lexus. 

MP: And that. belongs to? 

JH: Peggy. 

MP: Peggy? OK. And Peggy flew up with her two kids? 

JH: Yes. 

MP: OK. And then, uh, you stayed at the hotel, a irice hotel, down by the airport, somewhere around d 
Thirteen Coins, a coup~e ofblocks off ninety-nine. And then, go ahead, go ahead from there, I'm sorry.(!J 
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,~ lli: N-, n-, no, that's the end of it. 

. · 2 MP: Oh, OK. 

3 MB: Yeah. 

4 JH: Stayed up in, uh, uh, the one by Lynnwood there, a hundred ninety-six, I believe it's on. Uh, near 

5 the freeway. Uh, that night, urn, moved up to the island the next day, uh, which I believe would have 

6 been Friday. Uh, stared at my friend's house. Uh, left there Monday or Tuesday. Uh, that's when we 

7 got the hotel down by the Thirteen Coins, behind it, and then we left the day after Chirstmas. 

8 MP: OK. And, and the time of day that you left? / 

9 JH: Morning. I d-, I don't recall exactly what time it is. 

10 MP: In the morning? 

11 JH: Yes. 

12 MP: Kay. Urn, I just want to make sure we get the names right. At the house you told me when you 

13 got here, the first night you stayed with a friend, and his name was what? 

14 JH: Oh, when I got h-. 

15 MP: When you first. 

~-) 16 JH: When I got here by myself? 

/ 17 MP: Uh-huh. 

18 JH: Yeah, I stayed at my friend's house, uh, Ron Young.· 

19 MP: Ron Young? 

20 JH: Yes. 

21 MP: OK. And then the friend on the Island, his name? 

22 JH: Dick Deposit. 

23 MP: Dick Deposit. OK. And he stays at the Useless Bay Colony? Uh, Useless Bay somewhere. 

24 JH: That's, uh, yeah, that's his, uh, uh, recreational house, I guess. 

25 MP: OK. While you were on the island, did you have any interaction at all with Russell Douglas? 

26 JH: No. 

27 MP: No interaction whatsoever with Russell Douglas? 

28 JH: No. 

29 MP: OK. While you were up there in the Northwest anywhere, did you interact with Russ Douglas 

30 while you were in the, the Seattle area? 

·i·<])31 JH: Yes. ~ 
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MP: OK. Can you tell me about that? 

JH: Yes. Urn, the night, and here again it's that Monday or Tuesday thing, uh, the last night Peggy 

worked we drove back to, uh, Seattle to get the, uh, hotel room. Urn, I believe there was a couple of 

conversations back a-, calls back and forth trying to get connected up with Russell. I can, can't 

remember that, but that's what I'm recalling right now. 

MP: And who made those calls? 

JH: Uh, they, I think, traded turns. Urn. 

8 MP: Who's they? / 

. 9 JH: Russell and, and Peggy. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

·--. 16 

. )17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

.:f~Bl 
~d 

MP: Russell and Peggy called each other? 

JH: Yes. 

MP: OK. 

JH: Uh, trying to hook up (inaudible), and with the purpose of, uh, Peggy getting a present to Douglas 

to, uh, or pardon me, Russell to, uh, get to Brenna for Christmas by surprise. Uh, we got to the hotel 

room. Uh, I volunteered to take the present over, and did so, and, that evening with, it's either Monday 

or Tuesday evening. Urn, and that's my interaction with, was, are you Brenna's husband? He said, yes. 

I said, this is for you. He knew, apparently knew what I was doin' and, and, uh, uh, that was it. 

MP: So he knew you were comin' with the present? 

JH: Yes. 

MP: OK. 

JH: Well, and I don't, you know, eh, based on that, that point of contention that you brought out, I, I 

can't say for sure that he knew who was gonna bring it. He just knew it was gonna be there. 

MB: What was the present that you took his, for Bren-? 

JH: It was wrapped. 

MB: You don't know what Peggy bought for Brenna or didn't discuss it wi~her? 

JH: Urn, yeah, uh, it's, uh, it appeared to be cream and bath stuff. 

MP: Urn, now you told me at the house that you drove over and· parked right in front of his apartment? 

JH: Yes. 

MP: In Renton? 

JH: Yes. 

MP: Kay. Urn, you were in Peggy's car at that time? ~ 
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····~· lli: Yes. 

· ;:' 2 MP: The Lexus? Kay. And where was Peggy while you were delivering the present? 

3 JH: She was at the motel. 

4 MP: The motel? 

. 5 JH: Hotel. 

6 MP: And that's the one in? 

7 JH: That's behind the Thirteen Coins. 

8 MP: Behind the Thirteen Coins down by the airport. OK. So you'drove up from the airport hotel to 

9 come and bring the present to Russ up at his apartment in Renton? 

10 JH: Yes. 

11 MP: OK. And you said, earlier you said that you took it for Peggy just to be a nice guy cause she was 

12 beat. 

13 JH: That's true. 

14 MP: What, what had she been doing? 

15 JH: Uh, been on her feet all day. 

;·.16 MP: Doin' what? 
:. ) 

-· · 17 JH: Cutting hair. 

18 MP: Cutting hair? 

19 JH: Yes. 

20 MP: OK. Now you told me that you guys, and when you guys left the island, she didn't cut hair 

21 anymore. 

22 JH: That's right. 

23 MP: That was the last day she cut hair. 

24 JH: Uh, uh, no, I, I don't think I said that, cause that would be inaccurate. Several of her customers, uh, 

25 were willing to make appointments with her during the, uh, Thanksgiving and Christmas holidays. 

26 MP: Oh. 

27 JH: We're gonna come back and do their hair for the holiday. 

28 MP: Oh. 

29 · JH: So, so they worked, she worked that time, urn, but, urn, uh, that so far has been the last time. 

30 MP: But you told me that the day you guys left the island and went to that hotel was . 

. 9Jl lli: Oh,yes.ff' 
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MP: The last day that Peggy cut hair . 

JH: Yes. I'm sorry, I thought you were talking about whenwe were living up there. 

MP: Mm-kay. Urn, so excuse me just a second. I'm sorry, I gotta take this call again. 

MB: Do you want some coffee Jim? 

JH: I would love some. 

MB: Officer ducked in and told me the coffee was ready so I'll just leave the tape running and gr~]J that 

coffee. I'll leave the door open. You want anything in it? 

JH: No, just black please. 

MB: Black coffee coming right up. Here's some black stuff. 

JH: Terrific. Thank you. 

MB: Grab one of them for me. These guys are treatin' us OK. 

JH: A nice town to be in . 

/ 

MB: Want some cream and sugar in your coffee? I'm like, yeah, I'll take a cheese Danish. Well, like I 

said earlier, we've got detectives in, in Vegas right now working on talking to Peggy, so we're. 

MP: I apologize again Mister Ruden. I, I hate to keep running out of the room on ya. Urn. 

JH: No problem. 

MP: So, urn, yeah, we were talkin' about that you guys, you told me that you guys left the island and 

went to the hotel on the last day that Peggy cut hair. 

JH: That's correct. 

MP: OK. And then you delivered the present to Russ at his apartment on a day when Peggy was 

exhausted from cutting hair. 

JH: That was the same night. 

MP: That was the same night? 

JH: Yes. 

MP: OK. Now, w-, what, what gave you the feeling that, that,~. that the present consisted of body 

creams and soaps and stuff like that, or at your house you·called it girly stuff. What, how'd you know 

that? 

JH: I, I had saw it before it was wrapped. 

MP: Did ya? OK. And what was the reason again, y-, you said that there was a specific reason why, 

uh, Peggy wanred it delivered after hours, what was that reason again?~ 

ISLAND COUNTY SHERlFF'S OFFICE 
COUPEVILLE, WASHINGTON 98239-5000 

000009 

8 
Case No. 03-122223 

la 359 



ICSO Transcription Interview- Case No. 03-122223 Date of Interview: August 4, 2004 

·~ 
·-· - 2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

. ill: Well, she and Brenna apparently had made a pact not to exchange Christmas gifts. Peggy knew if 

she gave her one at work that Brenna wouldn't let her leave with goin' out and get her one if she hadn't 

done one already. And, uh, so, uh, she got one and had Russ take it up, uh, that, I think he wasleavin' 

that night, the night I dropped it off. 

.MP: OK. Wha-, and when you met Russ and dropped a present off with him what was, what was the 

interaction between you guys? 

ill: It was, are you Brenna's husband? And he said, yes. I says, here's her gift. And that was it. Or 

something to that effect. It was a-, it was about that long. / 

.MP: OK. Had you ever met before then? 

ill: No. 

.MP: Did he know about you? 

JH: Mm, I don't know. I di-, uh, if Brenna and Peggy talk about everything, then he probably knew of 

me, yes. 

14 . .MP: I mean, it, it just seems odd if he was, if he was talking on the phone all this time to Peggy and a 

15 guy that he doesn't know and doesn't associate with Peggy shows up and he didn't even ask who you 

'·· 16 were. I just, that seems a little out of sorts to me. 
''\ 
·17 ill: Yeah. 

18 MP: He just, he just took the pr-, y~u didn't say hi, I'm Peggy's friend, I'm Peggy's boyfriend, I'm, you 

19 just, are you Brenna's husband? Here's a present? 

20 JH: I just, I just wanted to make sure he was the right guy, yeah. 

21 MP: OK. 

22 MB: You know where Peggy bought that present, by any chance? Were you with her? 

23 ill: No. Hm-mm. Somewhere on the island. 

24 MP: Did, I don't know if I asked you this. Did Peggy call Brenna that night in those, between those 

25 phone calls where she was talkin' to Russ? 

26 JH: I, I don't know. 

27 MP: Were you with Peggy while she was talkin' to Brenna back and forth about making the delivery? 

28 JH: I'm not followin'. 

29 MP: When, when Peggy, or I'm sorry. 

30 JH: Your m-, you're talking about Russ . 

• JI MP: When Peggy and R-.."ff 
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JH: Yes. (inaudible). 

MP: When Peggy and Russ were talking, you were together, you heard the conversations? 

JH: Yes. 

MP: OK. And now, when you guys left the island that day and went down to, uh, this hotel by the 

airport, what time did you get to the hotel by the airport? 

JH: Urn, know, urn, I was gonna it's ~ark, but I know in December that's most ofthe time, urn, I think I 

said before seven and ten, and, and that's probably about as close as I'm gonna get. Uh, you know, it 

had to be like between seven and nine. Because I believe, if I'm re'calling this correctly, somethin1 

about ten o'clock, he was takin' off at ten o'clock if, if, uh, uh, oh man, I'm trYin', I'm trying to pick 

this one out of my cobwebs. Something about ten o'clock and him made it imperative that that present 

be there before he takes off. And we had to check in and wrap the present and go through, uh, uh, 

holiday traffic to get there and, uh, I don't recall what time we got off the island, but, uh, I'm gonna say 

between seven and nine. 

MP: OK. And you, when you drove to deliver the present, you told me that Peggy was not with you, is 

that correct? 

JH: That's correct. 

MP: Where was Peggy. 

JH: At the hotel room. 

MP: At the hotel room? 

JH: Right. 

MP: OK. Now at, at that point her two children were, were they with you or not? 

JH: No, they were with their dad. 

MP: With their dad. OK. 

MB: The ho-, the hotel was paid for, from what you can recall, with Peggy's credit card? 

JH: Yes. 

MB: I think we talked you thought it rnigh~ be the Radisson? 

JH: Possibly. That sounds right, but I can't s-, swear to, they, they got a conference center there, what's 

w-, what's another one that starts with a H? 

MP: Hilton? 

JH: Could be a Hilton. 

MB: They're all right in there. ~ 
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/~ MP: Yeah, there's the Hilton, the Holiday Inn, all there (inaudible). 

· · 2 JH: (inaudible) Yeah. It wasn't a Holiday Inn. 

3 MP: Now when you guys left the hotel in, in the Alderwood, Mill Creek area and came up to the island.' 

4 JH: Yes. 

5 MP: You, you thought that was maybe a Friday, Saturday? 

6 JH: Urn, it was the day after Peggy and the kids flew in, which ~ould make it either Thursday or 

7 Friday, I think. 

8 MP: OK. And what day did she, what was she doin' up there on the island? 

9 JH: Curtin' hair. 

10 MP: Cutting hair? 

11 JH: Mm-bm. 

12 MP: Where was she cutting hair? 

13 JH: At Brenna's place. 

14 MP: Brenna's salon? 

15 JH: Right. 

·-.16 MP: Do you know the name of the salon? 

' . >' 17 JH: Yes, Just Be. 

18 MP: Just Be. And you told me earlier I think, you think she had some appointm~nts for haircuts on 

19 · Friday, is that correct? 

20 JH: Yes. 

21 

22 

23 

'24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

<:·:·}:])31 

MP: Kay. And this is the Friday before Christmas? 

JH: Correct. 

MP: OK. And run over with me again the days that you think she probably had haircut appointments. 

JH: Uh, Saturday, uh, that Friday. Assuming that's Friday we got up there. I'm,. I'm, the more we're 

talking about this, I'm pretty sure that is the day. 

MP: OK. 

JH: Urn, Saturday, Monday, and maybe Tuesday, the Tuesday before Christmas. 

MP: Now you guys stayed on the island with, or not with but at Dick Deposit's house? 

JH: Correct 

. MP: There up by Useless Bay? 

JH: Yes.~ 
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MP: And you guys didn't get together with Brenna, as far as a social occasion? 

JH: Correct. 

MP: Kay. Urn, but you, you mentioned to me, now I don't wanna put words in your mouth, I think you· 

mentioned to me that there had been a couple of attempts, is that right? 

JH: Yeah, uh, that's my recollection, yeah. Urn, I know we were busy and, uh, I just seem to think 

there w~ a night when we thought we were gonna be able to go out and somethin' happenrd and we 

didn't. But that, I could be mixin' that up with Thanksgiving. 

MB: What was the reason for Peggy working those days? -' 

JH: Well, she had a, a real loyal clientele and they, uh, uh, basically paid for tlie trip. 

MB: Oh really? 

JH: Yeah. 

MP: Now when we talked earlier we, we talked about a few issues, uh, one of which was, uh, the, in. 

fact the, the question came from you, was is Peggy angry enough at me to implicate me in, iii this issue, 

in Russell's death? And I asked you, you know, well, why, why would she be that angry? Can you 

explain kinda what's goin' on with you and Peggy and why she's angry? 

JH: Well, sure. I'm a son-of-a-bitch, but I'm, I, I'm no killer. But I'm a son-of-a-bitch. Uh, when I left 

here, urn, to be with her, I had every intention of, um, uh, filing for divorce. And, uh, I didn't. And, uh, 

I made Peggy believe that, that, ub, you know, my ex-wife is, pardon, her, my wife was part of my past 

and that, and that we had a future together. And when, when we got home from Christmas, I explained 

to her I had to come back here and, uh, wrap up some 'loose ends and, excuse me. And when I got back 

my, my wife's mom was dying and, uh, the I.R.S. had put a lien on the business, because, because the 

goddamn secretaries didn't make a deposit and didn't say anything about it. Ub, her number one 

employee who took the most load off of her, she, she's a, uh, and I don't say this with any, any doubt 

that she's the finest, uh, computer technician, uh, as far as like, you know, tyin' businesses and stuff 

:~the, the stuff that's, that's, ub, kinda tyin' in stuff, the guy who took the most load off of her 

m th~ regard, in addition to running a business and quit, uh, and here I was, just gonna say, you 

know, uh, here's your divorce papers. I couldn't do it. And Peggy got a, of course, was expecting me to 

come back and, ub, I'm still here. And, and your timing is just amazing to me, because, uh, somebody'd 

asked me what day I was planning to leave and, uh, actually I had one more thing to do to help my wife 

tomorrow and I was plannin' on leavin'. But I can't leave her like this. I'm sure she's even more scared 

than me. This is quite a frightening experience. if 
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MP: Well, what is it that you're scared of? 

JH: That you guys are h-, are here. Ohjeez, you don't just show up on my, somebody's doorstep with, 

you know, without some idea of what you're doin'. 

MP: That's true, we've explained that part to you. 

JH: Yeah. 

6 MP:~ We, we don't come across the country for, for nothin'. 

7 MB: I wish the Sheriff was that liberal and we coulda made that trip to (inaudible). 

8 - JH: Uh-huh. / 

9 MB: What was that one, Thailand, we're lookin' at that? 

10 

11 
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:tvfP: And I, I guess that's, and, and we talked about that afterwards. You, you explained to me already 

kinda why Peggy was upset with ya. 

JH: Yeah. 

:tvfP: Um, and you, but I mean of, of all the people that coulda come to your mind to ask me about that 

was, that was the question you asked, is, is Peggy upset enough with me to implicate me in this crime. 

lli: I, I did, I did say that. And I also went on to, to tell ya I ca-, I don't believe it for a minute that she 

would but, uh, I'm just lookin' for a reason why li-, why I'm in this. And her name, and Brenna's name. 

MP: We-. 

JH: Somebody's doin' it. 

MP: Who, who else-doy~u think would be, and we've talked about this already, but have you come up 

with any other names? You mentioned that your current wife's pretty upset with ya. 

JH: Yeah, she'd never do that. Yeah, I've said the same thing about Peggy. 

MP: And tell me again what, just kinda what's your relationship with Brenna. 

JH: Just a friend ofPeggy's. Um, that's it. I, uh, i~ it's mostly a, uh, telephone relationship they have, 

and I'm kinda just a guy in the room. 

MP: OK. 

JH: Hearin' one end of the conversat:i.on. Or I was. 

:tvfP: You mentioned earlier that you had heard about what happened to Russ. 

JH: Yes. 

:tvfP: And what was your source of information about Russ? 

JH: We were in Vegas and, uh, Peggy's mom called and said, uh, uh, I gu~ss it was in the newspaper. 

:tvfP: Did she know who Russ was, Peggy's mom?~· 
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j~ JH: I don't know that. I assume so. 

· ·· 2 MB: What's drive time from Whidbey to Vegas? I've never driven it. 

3 JH: Uh, about twenty hours. 

4 MB: Really? 

5 JH: Yeah. 

6 MB: Thought it was longer than that 
·~ 

7 JH: Oh no, no, excuse me, it's about fourteen ·hours. · 

8 MB: Fourteen hours? / 

9 JH: Yeah. 
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MP: Wow, that's not bad. 

JH: No, I'm lying, it is twenty. It's about fourteen.hundred miles. 

MB: Mni. Depends how you drive I guess. 

JH: Yeah, good (inaudible). 

MB: Depends on what you are drivin'. 

MP: Wh-, when Peggy's mom called, did she talk to you about Russ or to Peggy? 

JH: No, talked to Peggy. 

MP: What, what did Peggy tell you after she get offthe phone with her mom? 

JH: Uh, she sat there, as I recall, eh,just kind oflike somethin' had hit, you can tell somethin' was hit. 

And, uh, asked her what the deal was. She said, it was mom, Brenna's husband got killed. 

MP: How did Peggy seem to handle that? I mean, you said it, it looked like she'd been hit, but, I mean, 

was it? 

JH: Oh, big shock. Uh, I would equate it to my wife being told I was leaving. That kind of impact. 

She and Brenna are close, you know, so she, I think they have more phone time than anybody. 

MB: Did she immediately hang up and call Brenna? 

JH: You know, she asked what to do, and this is always bad, I did this with my best friend and, and 

Peggy's sister, Sue, uh, when he got killed. You know, everybody in the world's callin' and comin' 

over, and I said, you know, she'll understand, just don't be another phone call right now, cause it aint 

gonnahelp. 

MP: Do you know, did she heed that advice or did she go ahead and call Brenna? 

JH: Uh, she did that day and I think, I think it, uh, a short while, a, eventually she called. I don't really 

recall.(? 
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MP: And she called Brenna that day? 

JH: Uh,no. 

MP: Oh, she didn't? 

JH: Did not call that day. 

MP: Oh. 

JH: She heeded my advice that day. 

MP: OK. 

MB: Do you have any idea how long after that you guys got back to Vegas that call came in? 

JH: Eh, it wasn't a very long time. Uh, I don't, I don't really recall. Two, thr~e, four days. Could've 

been any of that. 

MP: Did, did Brenna call her? Did Brenna call Peggy? 

JH: Not to my knowledge. 

MB: Did she call on Friday or anything before you guys hit the road? 

JH: I don't (inaudible). 

MB: (inaudible) much phone time together. 

JH: Uh, were you asking me before we hit the road? 

MB: Yeah. 

JH: Uh, no, no, cause we got, we got out early, uh, the day we left. 

MP: Yeah, Friday, the day you started back to Vegas, did she call you guys at all Friday? 

JH: I don't remember. 

MP: When we talked before about, uh, let me check my notes here. We've talked before about Peggy's 

financial situation and I, I gave that as, you know, I wondered if that were part of the reason why she

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