BY RONALD R CARPENTER 
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RECEIVED BY E-MAIL 

STATE OF WASHINGTON! 

Plaintiff/Respondent, 

vs. 

Supreme Court No. 90336-1 
Court of Appeals No. 69227-5-J 

JAMES EDWARD HUDEN, 
STATE'S RESPONSE TO 
PETITION FOR REVIEW AND TO 
PETITIONER'S MOTION FOR 
EXTENSION OF TIME Defendant/Petitioner.

I. IDENTITY OF RESPONDING PARTY 

The State of Washington, Plaintiff/Respondent in the above-

entitled appeal, by and through the Island County Prosecuting Attorney, 

seeks the relief designated in Paragraph II below. 

II. STATEMENT OF RELIEF SOUGHT 

The State of Washington urges the Court to deny the petition as 

untimely, and because it does not satisfy the considerations governing 

acceptance of review in RAP 13.4(b). 

III. FACTS RELEVANT TO MOTION 

James E. Huden was convicted on July 20, 2012 of first degree 

murder. The trial court issued a judgment and sentence on August 21, 

2012. CP 3-12. Mr. Huden timely filed a direct appeal, which was denied 
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by the Court of Appeals on February 3, 2012. State v. Huden, No. 69227-

5-I, slip op. (Division I, Feb. 3, 2014). The Court of Appeals denied Mr. 

Huden's subsequent motion for reconsideration on March 28, 2012. 

Appendix A. 

Acting pro se, Mr. Huden submitted a letter to Division I of the 

Court of Appeals stating, in its entirety: 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Re: Case # 69227-5-1, State of Washington v. James 
Edward Huden 

I intend to file a petition for review with the Supreme Court 
of the State of Washington. I request a 30-day deadline 
extension to file this petition so that I can access the 
resources I .need to properly complete it. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Is/ James E. Huden 

That letter was filed with the Court of Appeals on April 18, 2014. 

A copy was also filed on June 6, 2014 wjth this Court. The State received 

a copy ofthe letter by email on April18, 2014. 

Mr. Huden's pro se Petition for Review was received by the 

Supreme Court on June 6, 2014. It is unknown to the State when Mr. 

Huden filed his Petition for Review with the Court of Appeals. The State 

received Mr. Huden's untimely Petition for Review on May 28, 2014. 
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At trial, the court admitted the State's video recording of a police 

interrogation of Mr. Ruden. Ex. 112. 1 Before being admitted and played 

for the jury, the recording was edited to redact Mr. Ruden's request for 

counsel at the end of the interview. RP 787. (Appendix B)2
• During 

deliberations, the jury asked for equipment to play the recording, and the 

Court provided it. RP 1274. (Appendix C). Mr. Ruden's defense counsel 

said "I don't have an objection to that," referring to giving the jury video 

playback equipment. RP 1276. 

Mr. Ruden is currently confined m an institution of the 

Washington Department of Corrections. 

IV. GROUNDS FOR, RELIEF AND ARGUMENT 

A. Mr. Huden's Petition Should Be Rejected Because It Is 
Untimely. 

RAP 13.4(a) provides that a petition for review must be filed 

within 30 days after an order is filed denying a motion for reconsideration. 

Mr. Ruden's deadline to file his petition was April 27, 2014 - 30 days 

after the Court of Appeals denied his motion for reconsideration. If the 

1 Neither the recording, nor a transcript was transmitted to the Court of Appeals. 
2 Relevant portions of the trial transcript are attached as exhibits to this brief for the 
Court's convenience. · 
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Court were to grant Mr. Huden's request for a 30-day extension, the 

deadline to file his petition would be May 27, 2014. 

Mr. Huden has plainly not met the April 27 deadline. He has 

failed to show proof of filing under RAP 18.6(c) and GR 3.1. Even 

assuming that he filed his petition on or before May 27, 2014, an 

extension to that date is not justified. 

"Only in extraordinary circumstances and to prevent a gross 

miscarriage of justice" should the Court grant an extension of a petition 

for review. RAP 18.8(b). "[T]he desirability of finality of decisions 

outweighs the privilege of a litigant to obtain an extension of time .. :." 

RAP 18.8. 

This Court plainly has the authority to entertain an untimely 

petition, but only "upon a 'proper showing' by the petitioner of 

exceptional circumstances." Shumway v. Payne, 136 Wn.2d 383, 403, 964 

P.2d 349, 358 (1998). A late petition must demonstrate "sound reasons to 

abandon the preference for finality." Schaefco, Inc. v. Columbia River 

Gorge Comm'n, 121 Wn.2d 366, 368, 849 P.2d 1225 (1993). 

Here, Mr. Huden has not shown sound reasons to abandon the 

preference for finality, so his petition should be rejected. 
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B. The Court Should Not Grant the Petition For Review 
Because The Case Does Not Justify a Grant Of Review 
Under The Criteria In RAP 13.4(b). 

Mr. Ruden's petition challenges the Court of Appeals' rejection of 

his claim, made in his Statement of Additional Grounds under RAP 10.1 0, 

that the trial court abused its discretion by allowing the jury to play a. 

video-recorded interrogation during deliberations. The Court of Appeals 

properly held that the decision to allow the jurors access to the recording 

was a matter within the sound discretion of the trial court. State v. Ruden, 

No. 69227-5-I, slip op. at 9 (Division I, Feb. 3, 2014). 

A petition for review will be accepted by this Court only: 

(1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict 
with a decision of the Supreme Court; or 

(2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict 
with another decision of the Court of Appeals; or 

(3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of 
the State of Washington or ofthe United States is involved; 
or 

(4) If the petition involves an i~sue of substantial public 
interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court. 

RAP 1 ~ .4(b ). 

First, it should be noted that Mr. Ruden did not preserve this 

alleged error for review. In fact, his trial counsel stated on the record that 
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he had no objection to allowing the jury to have access to playback 

equipment. Therefore, he is estopped from raising this issue. 

Second, even if he had objected, decisional law squarely supports 

the trial court's ruling. The recording of the interrogation of Mr. Huden 

was not a testimonial exhibit (i.e. a deposition or transcript of testimony in 

the proceeding). It bore directly on the charge, and was not unduly 

prejudicial. Therefore the trial court had broad discretion to admit the 

recording, and provide the jury a means to review it. State v. Elmore, 139 

Wn.2d 250, 295, 985 P.2d 289, 315-16 (1999) (citing State v. Castellanos, 

132 Wn.2d 94, 935 P.2d 1353 (1997)). Elmore approved the trial court's 

provision of a playback device to the jury, so that it could listen, without 

restrictions, to the defendant's confession. This Court held: 

The jury was entitled to use these exhibits as it saw fit with 
the appropriate technical means to do so, i.e., a tape player. 
Otherwise, "[w]ithholding the playback machine would be 
like admitting a written contract into evidence but denying 
jurors their eyeglasses necessary to read it." 

·State v. Elmore, 139 Wn.2d at 296 (citing Castellanos, 132 Wn.2d 

at 102). 

The Court of Appeals' affirmance of the trial court ruling was not 

in conflict with any decision of this Court, nor with another division of the 

Court of Appeals. See RAP 13.4(b)(l)-(2). Moreover, it cannot be said 
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that this procedural trial ruling raises "a significant question of law under 

the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is 

involved." See RAP 13.4(b)(3). Mr. Huden confuses the meaning ofthe 

term "testimonial" as · used in Confrontation Clause analysis, under 

Crawford v. Washington, 541 U.S. 36, 124 S.Ct. 1354, 158 L.Ed.2d 177 

(2004 ), with the older and more ordinary meaning of "testimonial" used to 

describe certain exhibits, such as recorded depositions. Pet. at 9. His 

misunderstanding of the term does not create a constitutional issue for this 

Court. 

Finally, this petition involves a discretionary ruling under well-

established case law by a trial judge. It is questionable whether the 

recording in this trial was even a significant factor for the jury, given the 

mountain of other evidence presented. While neither the recording nor a 

certified transcript of the recording was transmitted to the Court of 

Appeals, it is fair to say that Mr. Huden denied any involvement 

whatsoever in the murder of Russel Douglas in the interview. 3 It strains 

one's imagination to see his interrogation as unduly prejudicial In short, 

there was nothing unusual about the admission of a video-recorded 

exhibit. In this case, there are no circumstances surrounding this issue that 

3 Mr. Huden attaches an unverified transcript of his interrogation to his petition. That 
transcript includes portions of the interrogation that were redacted from the recording 
admitted at trial. Nevertheless, it is substantially accurate for the portion of the recording 
it purports to represent. 
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call into question the administration of justice or the fairness of Mr. 

Huden's trial. Given that, there can be no genuine argument made that the 

petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be 

determined by the Supreme Court. RAP 13.4(b)(4). 

V. CONCLUSION 

For the reasons stated herein, the State respectfully urges the Court 

to reject the petition for review. It is m1timely, and does not merit review 

by the Supreme Court under the standards of RAP 13.4(b).